

# FITZROY DONCASTER CRICKET CLUB

# **Annual Report**

2022/23

## **Table of Contents**

Office Bearers	3
President's Report	4
Financial Report	7
Acknowledgments	16
Club Supporters	17
Captain's Report 2023	18
Award Winners	20
Batting and Bowling	20
Doug Rumble Trophy	21
A.E Liddicut Medal	22
Grade Champions and Recognition Awards	23
Outstanding Performances	
Batting	24
Bowling	24
Milestones / Club Records	25
Honour Roll Fitzroy & Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club	26
Honour Roll Doncaster Cricket Club	31
Honorary Life Members	32
Hall of Fame & Club Legends	33
Club History	35

## **Office Bearers**

President – Matthew Elliott

Vice President - Michael Fletcher

Treasurer – Gary Trevenen

Secretary – Sam Goodchap

#### **Committee Members**

Wayne Stewart, Alan Melbourne, Liam Smith, Sean Pietersz, Graeme Cook

#### **Director of Cricket**

Sean Pietersz

#### **Operations / Administration Manager**

Wayne Stewart

#### **Cricket Victoria Delegates**

Matthew Elliott, Michael Fletcher

#### **Chairman of Selectors**

Anthony Amalfi

#### Hall of Fame Sub-Committee

Jeff Harvey (Chair), Alan Melbourne, Roger Page, Robert Goldin

#### **Schramms Sports Club Committee**

Chairman Mal Smith, FDCC Representative Matthew Elliott

## **President's Report**

Dear Members,

I am writing to provide you with an update on the 2022/23 cricket season for Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club.

Having stepped into the role of President of a sporting club for the first time I must admit to being slightly naïve to role and all that comes with it. There is no doubt the ever-changing landscape for sporting clubs is becoming increasing challenging to navigate. What has quickly become apparent is expectations of all stakeholders associated with clubs has increased significantly and that clubs need to be attuned to these expectations. Being attuned to these expectations does not mean clubs need to be all things to all people, but it does mean they need to have a strong understanding of their purpose and why they ultimately exist to ensure they are not pulled in directions that are contrary to this purpose. It also means that clubs need to harness the power of the collective (small and large contributions be everyone involved) if they are to rise above the ever-expanding necessary minimum requirements to operate and enjoy success both on and off the playing fields.

With this at the forefront of our thoughts and always mindful of what measures we use to determine success, the 2022/23 season although disappointing from an on-field results perspective, was another small step in the right direction. Despite the best efforts of the club and everyone involved, our teams did not perform as well as we had hoped and did have not achieve the results we were aiming for. Not having a team competing in finals across all four grades was disappointing, however that being said, it was particularly pleasing to see the First & Third Elevens come home with a wet sail after Christmas and finish 10<sup>th</sup> & 12<sup>th</sup> respectively. It was also pleasing to see some the green shoots, in the form of players progressing from our Dowling Shield Program, start to push through the surface and we look forward to seeing these players grow and develop in the coming seasons.

Whilst discussing on field performance I would also like to take a moment to recognise and congratulate our individual award winners and those outstanding performances documented at the back of this report. It would also be remiss of me not to mention those FDCC players who were selected to represent the club at both National and International levels in Season 2022/23;

- Aryan Sharma (Victorian U17 State Team)
- Ikroop Dhanoa (Victorian U19 State Team)
- Samuel Elliott (Victorian Sheffield Shield / Marsh Cup Teams)
- Glenn Maxwell (Victorian Sheffield Shield / Marsh Cup Teams / Australian National Mens White Ball Teams)

Further to discussions around cricket matters I would like to take this opportunity to thank Michael O'Sullivan, Gavin Keller, Sanahasa Fernando, Peter Thompson, Anthony Amalfi, Rohan French, First XI Captain Ejaaz Alavi and the leaders within our playing groups for their individual and collective efforts to further enhance our cricket program. It is also pertinent to mention here Michael O'Sullivan's enormous contribution to not only FDCC but also to all those that encountered him through the club. After nine years at the helm MOS has decided to call time and we thank him for making our club and our players better. We wish him all the very best in his future endeavours and know that he will always be a part of the club in some way shape or form in the future. I would also like to thank Sunny Fernando for his contribution to the club, his impact in the short time he was here was significant and it was great to see his coaching acumen rewarded with his appointment as Head Coach of the Greenvale Cricket Club. Finally on the cricket side of

things it was great to see the further development of the Dowling Shield program and the performance of our squad in the competition. The disappointment felt by all in our Semi Final loss was testament to the physical and emotional investment made by the players and their families to the program and the club. As mentioned afterwards it was the way the boys played within the competition that made the club most proud and a huge shout out to James Trevenen, Zac Macciocca and Sam Elliott with support from Wayne Stewart and Gary Trevenen for providing an environment that enabled players to thrive.

Off field we continued to make progress in improving our facilities and infrastructure. Whilst exciting to see the Lower Ground Pavilion completed prior to season's end, it was extremely frustrating to see the project stall around a Certificate of Occupancy. This meant only minor space usage and a constant source of frustration to all working in and around this constraint. A huge thanks and shout out here must be given to Malcolm Smith in his role as Chair of the Schramms Sports Club and his tenacious approach to pushing forward not only the Lower Ground Pavilion Project but also the upgrade (painting and minor repairs) of the Main Pavilion prior to the start of the season proper. The Schramms Sports Club continues to achieve improvements with Malcolm in the Chair. As always, we continue seeking incremental improvements to the turf and hard wicket practice areas and centre square turf management. A huge thank you is also required for the tireless work of Simon Black and Mitch Potts from Elite Turf Management for their work on our grounds last season. The proof was in the pudding regarding their efforts with a large jump up in Schramms Ground Ratings respective of the other Premier Cricket venues (see below).

Pitch

OVERALL

Outfield

OVERALL

TOTAL

PREMIER MAIN OVALS

VENUE

	VENUE	OVERALL	OVERALL	TOTAL
1	CitiPower Centre (Junction Oval)	4.12	4.67	8.79
2	Albert Ground	4.04	4.71	8.75
3	Windy Hill	3.85	4.49	8.34
4	Casey Fields #4	3.54	4.70	8.24
5	Mervyn G Hughes Oval	4.08	4.04	8.12
6	Shepley Oval	3.72	4.37	8.09
7	AH Butler Oval (Frankston)	3.35	4.35	7.70
8	Russell Lucas Oval	3.35	4.33	7.68
9	Geelong Cricket Ground	3.33	4.28	7.61
10	Walter Galt Reserve	3.27	4.23	7.50
11	Melbourne University Oval	3.52	3.89	7.41
12	Schramms Reserve #1	3.08	3.75	6.83
13	Princes Park #1	3.69	3.05	6.74
14	Greenvale Reserve #1	3.27	3.40	6.67
15	Bill Lawry Oval	2.80	3.68	6.48
16	Central Reserve North	2.40	3.83	6.23
17	Camberwell Sportsground	2.81	3.08	5.89
18	Waverley Oval	2.37	3.50	5.87
19	Harry Trott Oval	2.64	3.22	5.86
	3RDS & 4THS VENUES	Pitch	Outfield	000000000000000000000000000000000000000
	VENUE	OVERALL		TOTAL
1	Beaumaris Secondary College - North Oval	4.18	4.61	8.79
-		4.42		
	Beaumaris Secondary College - South Oval	4.12	4.42	8.54
3	Casey Fields #5	3.81	4.30	8.11
3 4	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4	3.81 3.63	4.30 4.04	8.11 7.67
3 4 5	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2	3.81 3.63 3.64	4.30 4.04 3.92	8.11 7.67 7.56
3 4 5 6	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston)	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29
3 4 5 6 7	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82
3 4 5 6 7 8	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock)	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35 6.34
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock) Righetti Oval	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72 2.81	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62 3.26	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35 6.34 6.07
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock) Righetti Oval Ross Gregory Oval	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72 2.81 2.84	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62 3.26 3.15	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35 6.34 6.07 5.99
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock) Righetti Oval Ross Gregory Oval lan Johnson Oval	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72 2.81 2.84 2.68	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62 3.26 3.15 3.02	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35 6.34 6.07 5.99 5.70
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock) Righetti Oval Ross Gregory Oval Ian Johnson Oval Princes Park #3	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72 2.81 2.84 2.68 3.18	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62 3.26 3.15 3.02 2.29	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35 6.34 6.07 5.99 5.70 5.47
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock) Righetti Oval Ross Gregory Oval lan Johnson Oval Princes Park #3 Princes Park #2	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72 2.81 2.84 2.68 3.18 3.24	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62 3.26 3.15 3.02 2.29 2.19	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.35 6.34 6.07 5.99 5.70 5.47 5.43
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Casey Fields #5 Greenvale Reserve #4 Schramms Reserve #2 J Coburn Oval (Frankston) Kardinia Park West Central Reserve South Tony Dodemaide Oval Mayer Park Wilson Oval Jubilee Park #2 - Ringwood (The Rock) Righetti Oval Ross Gregory Oval Ian Johnson Oval Princes Park #3	3.81 3.63 3.64 3.12 3.06 2.95 3.54 3.49 3.61 2.72 2.81 2.84 2.68 3.18	4.30 4.04 3.92 4.17 3.76 3.83 3.15 3.00 2.74 3.62 3.26 3.15 3.02 2.29	8.11 7.67 7.56 7.29 6.82 6.78 6.69 6.49 6.35 6.34 6.07 5.99 5.70 5.47

Regarding our financial position this season, I am also pleased to report that for the eighth year in a row the club achieved a surplus. This was an outstanding result given our intention to re-establish our social calendar post COVID and ever-increasing costs. A huge thanks and recognition must be given to all involved (particularly the playing group) in making the season financially viable and contributing to its overall success. A special mention here to the playing group and their support of the 'Membership Drive' in the form of the FDCC Telethon. From this one simple event we were able to raise over \$10,000.00 and connect with a whole group of people who became official FDCC Social members. I would like to take this opportunity to thank all those that became members, turned up on match day to support the club and players and to our commercial partners (see **Club Supporters**) whose support is integral to the overall viability of the club. More details regarding the financial performance of the club can be seen in the Treasurer's report.

As always, I would like to acknowledge the hard work and support of the Committee members listed above in their respective roles. Your patience and support during the season has been very much appreciated and I would like to thank in particular Michael Fletcher, Graeme Cook and Gary Trevenen for their sage advice and mentorship. A huge thanks and special mention to Sean Pietersz, Leigh Watts and Jeff Harvey who no longer hold formal roles within the club (but support the club still from afar) but whose collective contributions have been profound.

A massive thank you to Wayne Stewart and Glenn Woolard taking care of match day responsibilities and to all our volunteers and others who have supported the Club in the following areas: scoring, social media, team managing, ground set up, training, and Thursday dinners. This includes, but is not limited to Almaaz Alavi, Daniel Sheers, Rupi Singh, Padam Chirmuley, Bruce Campbell, Mark Pasquali and Phil Smith (apologies to others who I have forgotten to mention). Special mention to Gary Trevenen who maintains an incredible oversight of our finances and has been available each week at training to lend a hand and all match days to manage our Frogbox live streaming. Also thank you to Hannah Gentz, John Rudd and Alan Melbourne who provided our social media content. Finally, I would like to congratulate Melbourne & Essendon Maribyrnong Cricket Clubs and all the other Premiers in Men's and Women's Premier Cricket this season, and as always, I would like to acknowledge Cricket Victoria and Manningham Council whose support is invaluable.

Having said all the above it is also important to look ahead to next season and embrace it with optimism. The club is in a strong position financially and the playing group have, over the off season, in the large part stuck together. The club is also excited around the strategic decision to increase investment within the cricket program via the appointment of new Head Coach Matthew Bremner, Development Coach Alex Lewis, and Bowling Coach Matthew Whittaker. We have also been extremely fortunate to retain Gavin Keller as our Senior Assistant who has formed great connections with our playing group and will be great mentor to Matt Bremner.

I look forward to seeing you all shortly as we emerge from the depths of winter and Go Lions!

Presid	lent	of	FI	7	$\sim$	$\overline{}$
LICSIC	ICIII	()				

Matthew Elliott

## **Financial Report**

## Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc. Balance Sheet at 30 April 2023

		2023	2022
		\$	\$
Assets	/ <del></del>		
Current Assets			
Cash & Term Deposits		107,622	128,054
Inventories		8,630	6,802
Accounts Receivable		2,200	- 3
Accrued Income		19,220	5,836
Prepaid Expenses			1,375
Bendigo Conservative Index Fund		102,583	101,749
Australian Unity Property Income Fund		46,607	48,465
Cromwell Direct Property Fund		48,805	52,035
	Total Current Assets	335,667	344,316
Non-Current Assets			
Plant & Equipment		14,642	1,147
	Total Non-Current Assets	14,642	1,147
Total Assets		350,309	345,463
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities			
Accounts Payable		2,138	3
Accrued Expenses		7,382	15,145
GST Payable <receivable></receivable>		1,313	-488
Schramms Sports Club: Provision		9,333	13,500
Club Development: Provision		26,000	18,000
	<b>Total Current Liabilities</b>	46,166	46,157
Total Liabilities		46,166	46,157
NET ASSETS		304,143	299,306
Equity			
Members' Funds: Retained Earnings		304,143	299,306
TOTAL EQUITY		304,143	299,306

## Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Revenue & Outgoings for the Year Ended 30 April 2023

		2023	2022
	2	\$	\$
Revenue	-		
Grants			
Cricket Victoria - General		80,064	65,298
Cricket Australia		-	2,273
Grants - Game Costs Reimbursed		1,045	
Grants - Other		9,000	4,000
	Subtotal	90,109	71,571
Members, Sponsors, Functions & Fundraising			
Membership - Player Fees		18,318	14,500
Membership – Social Members		10,232	-
Sponsorship		22,718	20,181
Fundraising		287	3,167
Functions		6,511	3,836
Other Income - Gifts & Donations		3,380	2,200
	Subtotal	61,446	43,884
Facilities & Investments			
Other Income		3,975	4,267
Investment Income		6,775	8,963
Gain <loss> on Investment</loss>		-4,253	-7,614
	Subtotal	6,497	5,616
Trading			
Alcohol		11,779	5,989
Team Dinners		4,656	1,894
Food - Catering		1,559	-
Other Drinks		1,136	2,390
Combined Sales		1,725	1,308
Clothing Sales		8,971	12,076
	Subtotal	29,826	23,657
Total Revenue		187,878	144,728

# Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Revenue & Outgoings for the Year Ended 30 April 2023

		2023	2022
	o	\$	\$
Deduct: Cost of Revenue	-		
Functions & Fundraising			
Catering		7,853	3,537
Other Costs		1,228	550
Cricket Victoria Events		1,227	1,364
	Subtotal	10,308	5,451
Trading			
Alcohol		5,554	2,638
Food - Team Dinners		3,847	1,936
Food - Catering		913	90
Other Drinks		1,744	1,536
Kitchen Supplies		100	84
Combined Sales		1,300	858
Barman		1,950	1,280
Clothing Purchases & Write-downs		17,115	12,939
	Subtotal	32,523	21,271
Total Cost of Revenue		42,831	26,722
Gross Surplus		145,047	118,006
Deduct: Outgoings			
Players			
Training & Coaching		51,975	40,500
Pre-season expenses		6,155	1,173
Indoor Nets Hire		4,033	-168
Practice Balls & Equipment		951	2,752
Match Balls		6,278	5,432
Lunches & Teas		1,685	68
Umpiring		1,313	559
Trophies		1,507	395
Male Development Squad		3,744	1,000
Female Development Squad		-	736
	Subtotal	77,641	52,447

# Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Revenue & Outgoings for the Year Ended 30 April 2023

	2023	2022
	<b>\$</b>	\$
Labour	45 <del>3</del> 4344.	754
Administration	1,000	1,000
Game Day	15,000	11,500
Other	2,201	2,220
Su	btotal 18,201	14,720
Facilities		
Ground Rental	10,768	11,659
Cricket Equipment - Other	800	-
Electricity	4,245	4,638
Depreciation	1,717	1,652
Pavilion Rental	3,765	1,428
Cleaning	3,212	1,967
Repairs & Maintenance	279	2,508
Minor Equipment Items	1973	1,062
Signage & Linemarking	1,030	820
Su	btotal 25,816	25,734
Administration		
Printing & Design	1,509	124
Computer Software & Subscriptions	2,655	2,769
Grant Applications	\$57	450
Fees & Lodgements	362	321
Telephone & Internet	1,073	989
Bank Fees - Merchant Fees	853	554
Schramms Sports Club Levy: Provision	4,100	8,726
Club Development: Provision	8,000	8,000
Su	btotal 18,552	21,933
Total Outgoings	140,210	114,834
Net Surplus < Deficit>	4,837	3,172
Income Tax Expense Attributable to Net Surplus <def< td=""><td>ficit&gt; -</td><td></td></def<>	ficit> -	
Net Surplus for the Year after Income Tax	4,837	3,172
Retained Earnings at the Beginning of the Year	299,306	296,134
Retained Earnings at the End of the Year	304,143	299,306

#### Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc.

#### Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 April 2023

#### 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

#### 1) Statement of Compliance

The Committee has determined that the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent on general purpose financial statements. The financial report is a special purpose financial report which has been prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporation Reform Act (Victoria) 2012.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with following Australian Accounting Standards:

AASB 101	Presentation of Financial Statements
AASB 108	Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
AASB 110	Events Occurring After Balance Date
AASB 1031	Materiality
AASB 1048	Interpretation of Standards
AASB 1054	Australian Additional Disclosures

#### 2) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis, are based on historical cost and do not take into account changing money values except where specifically stated.

#### 2. Specific Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

#### 1) Income Tax

The association is a not-for-profit organisation and is exempt from income tax under section 50-45 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

#### 2) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

#### 3) Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of receipt.

#### 4) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities within twelve months.

#### 5) Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

#### 6) Inventory

Inventory held for sale or future use is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

#### 7) Investments

Investments are measured at their market value as at the end of the reporting period.

#### 8) Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure that it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets' employment and subsequent disposal.

#### 9) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over each asset's useful life to the association, commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

#### 10) Trade Creditors and Other Payables

Trade creditors and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received by the association during the reporting period, which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days on recognition of the liability.

#### 11) Prepaid Revenue

Prepaid revenue is revenue received in advance and represents the liability outstanding for goods and services not yet provided by the association as at the end of the reporting period.

#### Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc.

#### **Declaration by Members of the Committee**

The Committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that this special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with the accounting policies outlined in Notes 1 and 2 to the financial report.

In the opinion of the Committee, the financial report presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Inc. as at 30 April 2023 and its performance for the year then ended.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee and is signed for and on behalf of the Committee by:

**Matthew Elliott** 

Mahred

President

Gary Trevenen

Treasurer

Date: 01 August 2023



01/08/2023

Gary Trevenen Treasurer Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club Schramms Reserve, 7 JJ Tully Drive, Doncaster, Vic, 3108

Dear Gary,

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

#### TO THE MEMBERS OF FITZROY DONCASTER CRICKET CLUB

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club, which comprises the balance sheet as at April 30, 2023, the income and expenditure statements for the year then ended, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

#### The Club's Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Club is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report, and has determined that the accounting policies described in the notes to the financial report are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of the Associations Incorporations Act (Victoria), and are appropriate to meet the needs of the members.

The Club's responsibility also includes such internal control as the members and committee determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Club, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



• 61 3 9867 1150

6 info@fintax.com.au

Suite 160, 1 Queens Rd, MELBOURNE, VIC 3004

Income Tax Returns
Tax Pianning
SMSF Audits
BAS Statements
Business Advice

#### Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board.

#### Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position as at April 30, 2023 and its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting policies described in the notes to the financial report

#### **Basis of Accounting**

Without modifying in our opinion, we draw attention to the notes in the financial report, which describe the basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared for distribution to the owners for the purpose of fulfilling the Club is reporting obligations under Associations Incorporations Act (Victoria). As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.

Peter Missen Fintax Services Pty Ltd August 1, 2023

Poter Missen



+ 61 3 9867 1150

() info@fintax.com.au

Suite 168, 1 Queens Rd, MELBOURNE, VIC 3004

Income Tax Returns Tax Planning SMSF Audits BAS Statements Business Advice

## **Acknowledgments**

#### **Cricket Victoria**

Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club would like to fully acknowledge the support it receives from Cricket Victoria. We acknowledge the Board and its Chairmen Dr. David Maddocks and Ross Hepburn, and CEO Mr Nick Cummins, and the Premier Cricket management team for their assistance throughout the season.

#### **Congratulations**

We, as a Club offer our congratulations to:

- Harrison Smyth, Carlton Cricket Club, winner of the Jack Ryder Medal
- Makinley Blows, Essendon Maribyrnong Cricket Club, winner of the Una Paisley Medal
- Melbourne Club, 1<sup>st</sup> XI Premiers
- Northcote Cricket Club, 2<sup>nd</sup> XI Premiers
- St Kilda Cricket Club, 3<sup>rd</sup> XI Premiers
- St Kilda Cricket Club, 4<sup>th</sup> XI Premiers
- Essendon Maribyrnong Cricket Club Women's 1st XI Premiers
- Geelong Cricket Club Women's 2nd XI Premiers
- Carlton Cricket Club Women's 3rd XI Premiers
- St Kilda Cricket Club, JA Seitz Club Championship
- Melbourne Cricket Club, Women's Club Championship
- Essendon Cricket Club, Dowling Shield Premiers
- Melbourne Cricket Club, Marg Jennings Cup Premiers

## **Club Supporters**

#### **Strategic Partners**





**Supporters** 

















690 Doncaster road Doncaster





## Captain's Report 2023

The 2022/23 premier cricket season was another memorable one for the Lions. This was the first pre-season in two years that was not affected by COVID lockdowns, and we were able to train together for the full three months. While COVID no longer posed a problem for cricket, the weather had other ideas. Unfortunately, the first six weeks of the season were washed out and the pre-season was extended to four and a half months. Safe to say everyone was chomping at the bit to get out there for our round one game against Prahran on the 5 November. The late start to the season resulted in a change to the fixture which meant our first red-ball game in 3 seasons had to wait until after the Christmas break.

As we always do at FDCC, in the 2022/23 season we placed great emphasis on our ACTIONS and culture, and we continued to drive high standards amongst the playing group. The 1<sup>st</sup> XI were looking to improve on our 13th place finish in the 2021/22 season. While the 1<sup>st</sup> XI got off to a slow start, we came home strong, winning our last five games, to finish 10th on the ladder and only miss out on a finals spot by five points. At the completion of round 15, the 2<sup>nd</sup> XI finished 14<sup>th</sup> on the ladder, the 3<sup>rd</sup> XI came home strong to finish 12<sup>th</sup>, and the 4<sup>th</sup> XI finished 15<sup>th</sup>.

It was great to see the young playing group sticking tight from the prior year, allowing us to maintain a stable playing list and introduce exciting new players to the club. The club remains very young in age but experienced in the number of games played. A total of 17 players played in the 1st XI. We had two debutants: Aryan Sharma and Jevon Kett. All our players, new and existing, made contributions throughout the season. Highlights included centuries to Liam Banthorpe and Jack Rudd, and a very consistent season with the ball for Kobe Smith.

From a 1<sup>st</sup> XI perspective, there were a lot of great learnings to come out of the season. We didn't start the season as well as we would have liked, however the Tuesday night T20 competition gave us a bit of freedom and we went out and played great cricket against strong opposition which resulted in us winning three out of the four games, placing us second on the ladder in our pool. Unfortunately, even with our strong performances, we were not able to progress through to the semi-finals as only the top team in each pool and one wildcard team made it through to the final four. Regardless, it was an outstanding effort by the team. A big highlight being the game against Northcote where, after a Matt Short blitz to start the innings, we fought back well to restrict Northcote to around the 150 mark. We were on track throughout the chase, and then needing six off the last ball to win, Charlie Simondson put one over the ropes to win us the game.

Back in the regular season, the white ball cricket was not quite going to plan in 2022/23 and while we were well and truly in with a chance in every game, we couldn't quite capitalize on our opportunities. The Christmas break came at a great time because with it came the start of red-ball cricket. The team jumped back into red ball cricket after not playing it for the prior two seasons, and performed well as if we hadn't stopped playing it at all. We won all four of the red ball games convincingly, getting extremely close to an outright win in two of the four games. To fall just short of the top eight was disappointing as we were in competitive situations in several games against strong sides but could not get over the line. I know this result in season 2022/23 will motivate us and make us hungry for next season and we will take a great deal of confidence from the way we finished off the season.

While it was disappointing for no sides to be competing in the final's series, it was great to see the development of players in all four XIs throughout the year. The teamwork, skills, and club bonding on show throughout the year is something to admire and it makes me very excited for the future of our club and the players coming through the grades.

On the Thursday selection night heading into the last game of the season, our legendary coach for the last nine seasons, Michael O'Sullivan, announced his retirement as coach of Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club. It is difficult to put into words the impact that MOS has had on myself and every single player that has come through Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club throughout his time at the club. Thank you, MOS, for the hard work, passion, dedication, guidance and support you have brought to our great club, and for nurturing the great club culture that we have today. Not only have you achieved the ultimate success as a coach (multiple premierships), but you have made each one of us a better person. You made time for every single person who walked through the club doors, whether it be a player in the 1<sup>sts</sup> or 4<sup>ths</sup>, a parent, supporter, or volunteer. The impact that you have had on us as a coach, but more importantly as a person, will never be forgotten! I wish you and Caroline and your family all the best for what comes next, and I know we will be seeing you around whenever you get the opportunity.

It was also great to have Sunny Fernando in his first season as assistant coach of the group. Sunny had a profound impact on every single player, and his drive and commitment to improving each player was immense. This has also been noticed throughout the competition and as a result Sunny has commenced as Head Coach of Greenvale Kangaroos Cricket Club for season 2023-24, a great reward for all the hard work. A big thank you to Sunny and we wish him all the very best for his new role!

It is an exciting time at the club, with new coach Matthew Bremner taking over this pre-season. Brem has been hard at work this off-season putting everything into place and I am excited to see the direction the club is heading in under his guidance.

Thank you to all the coaching staff, committee members, players, volunteers, and supporters who make our club great. Our club attracts and retains great people, and this is what drives the playing group to keep improving each year. The majority of the playing group have committed to playing together again in the upcoming season and we will be working hard to take our game to the next level and improve together as a group to continue the success of our club. I am looking forward to working with the entire FDCC family to continue to achieve this success and to bring our tight knit family even closer.

Ejaaz

## **Award Winners**

## **Batting and Bowling**

## $1^{st} \, XI$

Award	Player	Figures
Batting	Liam Banthorpe	431 Runs @ 35.92
Bowling	Ejaaz Alavi	24 Wickets @ 19.17

## $2^{nd}\,XI$

Award	Player	Figures
Batting	Abhilash Sharma	522 Runs @ 43.50
Bowling	Callum Mcllveen	23 Wickets @ 23.78

## 3<sup>rd</sup> XI

Award	Player	Figures
Batting	Darcy Gregory-Francis	233 Runs @ 58.25
Bowling	James Trevenen	17 Wickets @ 24.35

## 4th XI

Award	Player	Figures
Batting	Max Sacristani	324 Runs @ 46.29
Bowling	Jacques Wessels	10 Wickets @ 33.80

#### **Doug Rumble Trophy**

Award	Trophy	Player
Best Clubman	Doug Rumble Memorial Trophy	Kobe Smith

Doug Rumble was a wicketkeeper who played 187 games for Fitzroy and University. He was born in 1955 and played his first game in 1970 at the age of 15, keeping to the likes of Eddie Illingworth and 'Froggy' Thompson, the most feared opening bowling combination in district cricket. He made 1658 runs, took 286 catches and 25 stumping's throughout his career. After two seasons at University, Doug returned to Fitzroy to become captain coach for the club for two years in the early 1980s.

Doug was tragically killed in a skiing accident in 1986, just before the commencement of the first season of the amalgamated Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club. He left behind his wife Glenda and two young children, Jessica, and Thomas. Fitzroy Doncaster lost a great clubman. Such was the respect of both Fitzroy and University had for Doug, the clubs now play for the 'Doug Rumble Cup' each time they meet. Doug earned this respect not only for the way he went about his cricket, but for the qualities he possessed as a person. On the field, you knew that if the side was in trouble, he would be the one fighting back in the lower order. Off the field, he was a great clubman, who was only too keen to help others. He was respected by both his teammates and opposition alike and was probably one of the most popular players in the game.

This trophy is not for the best wicketkeeper, it is for the player who has best demonstrated those qualities that Doug possessed as a player, a clubman, a teammate, and a friend. It is a very important trophy for the club to honor Doug's memory, his contribution, and to encourage those qualities in the current generation of players.

#### Winners have included:

1986-1987	G Salamito	1998-1999	K Drennan	2010-2011	B Waterman
1987-1988	A Melbourne	1999-2000	D McNees	2011-2012	J Considine
1988-1989	D Jensen	2000-2001	J Travaglia	2012-2013	M Bremner
1989-1990	R Watts	2001-2002	D Motschall	2013-2014	S Duckworth
1990-1991	L Watts	2002-2003	W Hunter	2014–2015	D Watts
1991-1992	J Klein	2003-2004	B Joyce	2015–2016	J Augustin
1992-1993	J Harvey	2004-2005	D Laidlaw	2017-2018	R Saric - Skewes
1993-1994	A Melbourne	2005-2006	G Kellar	2018-2019	J Plunkett
1994-1995	A Dyer	2006-2007	P Lovell	2019-2020	James Trevenen
1995-1996	G Vavasseur	2007-2008	D Campbell	2020-2021	Jackson Ellingworth
1996-1997	S Helmot	2008-2009	D Campbell	2021-2022	Brendan Grace
1997-1998	A Dyer	2009-2010	D Robertson	2022-2023	Kobe Smith

#### A.E Liddicut Medal

Award	Trophy	Player
First XI Champion	A.E. Liddicut Medal	Liam Banthorpe

Arthur played 167 1st XI matches for Fitzroy Cricket Club over 23 seasons during the period 1914-15 to 1936-37. An all-rounder, he amassed 6855 runs at an average of 35.40 that included 13 centuries. Arthur also took 542 wickets at 17.09.

The club won its first premiership in 1930-31 against South Melbourne on the back of the great contribution of a century and a four-wicket haul from captain, Arthur Liddicut. He was a long serving committee man for the club and delegate to the Victorian Cricket Association for 39 years. Arthur is regarded as one of the club's greatest servants.

The A.E. Liddicut Medal recognizes the player in our Club considered the best player in the 1st XI based on the Jack Ryder Medal voting.

#### Winners have included:

1	1972-1973	E Illingworth	1989-1990	L Watts	2005-2006	P Dickson
1	1973-1974	A Duff & E Illingworth	1990-1991	M Ridgway	2006-2007	P Dickson
1	1974-1975	A Thompson	1991-1992	M Ridgway	2007-2008	P Dickson
1	1975-1976	T Cullen	1992-1993	M Ridgway	2008-2009	B Knowles
1	1976-1977	E Illingworth	1993-1994	G Watts	2009-2010	L Mash
1	1977-1978	L Joslin	1994-1995	G Watts	2010-2011	L Mash
1	1978-1979	G Watts	1995-1996	B Joyce	2011-2012	L Mash
1	1979-1980	R Watts	1996-1997	G Watts	2012-2013	P Dickson & L Mash
1	1980-1981	S Cook	1997-1998	L Childs	2013-2014	P Dickson
1	1981-1982	R Watts	1998-1999	G Watts	2014-2015	P Dickson
1	1982-1983	R Watts	1999-2000	L Childs	2015-2016	T Lawford
1	1983-1984	G Watts	2000-2001	B Joyce	2016-2017	T Lawford
1	1984-1985	L Watts	2001-2002	D Plumpton	2017-2018	T Lawford
1	1985-1986	R Bailey	2002-2003	C Street	2018-2019	T Lawford
1	1986-1987	L Watts	2003-2004	B Waterman	2019-2020	J Rudd
1	1988-1989	T Considine	2004-2005	L Mash	2020-2021	J Rudd
					2021-2022	J Rudd
					2022-2023	L Banthorpe

## **Grade Champions and Recognition Awards**

Award	Trophy	Player
2 <sup>nd</sup> XI Champion	L.J. Tully Shield	Abhilash Sharma
3 <sup>rd</sup> XI Champion	H.J. Noonan Shield	Michael Sacchetta
4 <sup>th</sup> XI Champion	N.R. Dowell Shield	Max Sacristani
Most Improved/Best U21 Player	Warren Hockey Memorial Shield	Rex Sacristani
Development Player of the Year	R G Wood Shield	Austin Fardell / Harrison Smith
Coaches Award	Un-named	Charlie Simondson
Club's Best Fielder	Un-named	Nick Fletcher
Most Outstanding Finals Player	Un-named	NA

## **Outstanding Performances**

## **Batting**

Runs	Name	Team	Round	Against
128	Abhilash B Sharma	Kookaburra Men's Premier Seconds	14	Kingston Hawthorn
124	Jack Rudd	Kookaburra Men's Premier Firsts	12	Camberwell Magpies
119*	Jack Rudd	Kookaburra Men's Premier Firsts	9	Essendon
119*	Michael Jephcott	Kookaburra Men's Premier Seconds	6	Carlton
101*	Michael Sacchetta	Kookaburra Men's Premier Seconds	13	Carlton
100*	Liam Banthorpe	Kookaburra Men's Premier Firsts	7	Casey South Melbourne

## **Bowling**

Player	O M	R	W	Grade	Round	Opponent
Kai Turner	14.3 4	22	7	Kookaburra Men's Premier Thirds	14	Kingston Hawthorn
Gurnaz Khatra	7.2 2	27	5	Kookaburra Men's Premier Thirds	11	Northcote
Sam Kimber	10 1	29	5	Kookaburra Men's Premier Seconds	12	Camberwell Magpies
Sam Kimber	10 0	46	5	Kookaburra Men's Premier Seconds	6	Carlton

## **Milestones / Club Records**

#### Milestones achieved 2022-23 Season - First Eleven:

Samuel Elliott - 50 Games

Liam Banthorpe - 150 Games

## **Honor Roll Fitzroy & Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club**

	1st	XI	2nd XI		
Year	Batting	Bowling	Batting	Bowling	
1873-1874	W Field	W Field	No record	No record	
1874-1875	J Kennedy	T A Wilkinson	W Cowley	T Collins	
1875-1876	T Smart	T A Wilkinson	F Dyall	F Dyall	
1876-1877	No record	No record	No record	No record	
1877-1878	W Field	W Field	J Power	J Clayton	
1878-1879	W Field	P A McAnulty	G Mitchell	No record	
1879-1880	J W Ward	P A McAnulty	J O'Hara	T McMillan	
1880-1881	J W Ward	J W Hayes	J De Young	H De Young	
1881-1882	J B O'Hara	J B O'Hara	F Topping	C Newman	
1882-1883	J Trinnick	J B O'Hara	E Prentice	T Dent	
1883-1884	G Watsford	J H Allen	W Welsford	W Welsford	
1884-1885	J T Hayes	G Smart	W Welsford	P Joseph	
1885-1886	R Mitchell	C Newman	A Whitelaw	R Newman	
1886-1887	A Whitelaw	J T Hayes	G Smart	T Goodenough	
1887-1888	R Mitchell	J C McKirdy	S Conning	W Hayes	
1888-1889	T Lederman	J C McKirdy	J Barnes	W Park	
1889-1890	J T Hayes	J Brideson	J D Muir	P Fairway	
1890-1891	J Worrall	J Worrall	E Melling	J Baird	
1891-1892	J Worrall	J Worrall	T Lederman	J C McKirdy	
1892-1893	J Worrall	W Hannah	T Lederman	E Twentyman	
1893-1894	A Fox	R Mitchell	E Melling	E Twentyman	
1894-1895	C Campbell	E Twentyman	E Snow	T Cook	
1895-1896	A Tarrant	G Beacham	W Delves	E Snow	
1896-1897	A Tarrant	G Beacham	A O'Leary	A O'Leary	
1897-1898	A Tarrant	G Beacham	C Best	J A Ross	
1898-1899	G Beacham	F Tarrant	E Brown	A O'Leary	
1899-1900	A Tarrant	R Mitchell	J C McKirdy	H Walton	
1900-1901	M Ellis	F Tarrant	G Beacham	N Bath	
1901-1902	J Smith	M Ellis	A Dakin	J C McKirdy	
1902-1903	A Tarrant	R Mitchell	T Hocking	H Walton	
1903-1904	M Ellis	R Mitchell	W Griffiths	J Sharp	
1904-1905	M Ellis	C Best	G Chesswass	W Punch	

	1st	XI	2nd XI		
Year	Batting	Bowling	Batting	Bowling	
1905-1906	M Ellis	R Mitchell	E Brooks	J Gibson	
1906-1907	M Ellis	R Mitchell	T Hocking	A Atkins	
1907-1908	C McKenzie	C Dwyer	W Robertson	C Owens	
1908-1909	C McKenzie	A Hartkopf	M Grace	E Boulter	
1909-1910	C Kiernan	C Kiernan	F Colechin	E Boulter	
1910-1911	P Shea	W H Cannon	S C Lansdown	A Tarrant	
1911-1912	C McKenzie	W H Cannon	A Brimblecombe	T Rennie	
1912-1913	E A McDonald	W H Cannon	A Brimblecombe	R Wawn	
1913-1914	C Kiernan	E A McDonald	S C Lansdown	A Tarrant	
1914-1915	C Kiernan	W H Cannon	A Tarrant	A Tarrant	
1915-1916	C Kiernan	E A McDonald	A J Lansdown	C Best	
1916-1917	C Kiernan	W H Cannon	A Brimblecombe	S C Lansdown	
1917-1918	A E Liddicut	A E Liddicut	A Tarrant	G Brosnan	
1918-1919	G Spicer	E A McDonald	G Brosnan	G Brosnan	
1919-1920	L A Cody	E A McDonald	B Phillips	G Brosnan	
1920-1921	C McKenzie	E A McDonald	H Cohen	G Brosnan	
1921-1922	A Dummett	R Jones	E Tate	G Brosnan	
1922-1923	A E Liddicut	A E Liddicut	F D Chapman	T Hawkins	
1923-1924	B Cosgrave	A E Liddicut	A Cant	T Hawkins	
1924-1925	A J Lansdown	F D Chapman	H Cohen	T Hawkins	
1925-1926	A E Liddicut	F Tarrant	H Cohen	J Cashman	
1926-1927	J A Scaife	A E Liddicut	J Cashman	C Comben	
1927-1928	A J Lansdown	A Dummett	H Brendel	B Boyd	
1928-1929	A E Liddicut	A E Liddicut	R Flavell	J Sheahan	
1929-1930	J A Scaife	A E Liddicut	H Parkin	H Dawson	
1930-1931	J A Scaife	A E Liddicut	H Brendel	A E Barrass	
1931-1932	A E Liddicut	A E Liddicut	W Flynn	R Thomson	
1932-1933	J Frederick	F D Chapman	H Parkin	G Rudolph	
1933-1934	A E Liddicut	F D Chapman	H Parkin	A Mc Donald	
1934-1935	J Plant	M Sievers	J Frederick	G Rudolph	
1935-1936	R Gardner	J Frederick	D McCarthy	T Ruddell	
1936-1937	E Williams	J Frederick	F Chapman	A Woodford	
	1st	XI	2nd	XI	
	Batting	Bowling	Batting	Bowling	
1937-1938	E Williams	M Sievers	T J Ruddell	F D Chapman	

1938-1939	M Harvey	M Sievers	A E Liddicut	A E Liddicut
1939-1940	H J Plant	E Williams	A E Liddicut	A E Liddicut
1940-1941	M Sievers	H J Plant	A Haggar	R Liddicut
1941-1942	M Sievers	M Sievers	R Harvey	A E Liddicut
1942-1943	M Harvey	T Ruddell	A E Liddicut	F Caddaye
1943-1944	R Harvey	I Clay	G Carleton	L Scully
1944-1945	J Maroney	I Clay	D Arnall	A Woodford
1945-1946	M Harvey	A Woodford	A Haggar	J Zimmer
1946-1947	M Harvey	H J Plant	L Straw	P Hewitt
1947-1948	C Harvey	R Liddicut	M Reid	J Zimmer
1948-1949	L Straw	V Taylor	H Shillinglaw	R Thomson
1949-1950	R Harvey	H Shillinglaw	K Cant	K Cant
1950-1951	R Harvey	B Considine	H Sheahan	P Hewitt
1951-1952	N Harvey	H Shillinglaw	H Sheahan	J Beitzel
1952-1953	M Harvey	K Peters	J Beitzel	C Adams
1953-1954	R Harvey	C Adams	L Walker	V Lusic
1954-1955	H Shillinglaw	C Adams	R Pearse	V Lusic
1955-1956	N Harvey	R Harvey	R Milner	J Simpson
1956-1957	R Harvey	K Peters	R Milner	J Mercovich
1957-1958	R Furlong	C Adams	N Turl	E Illingworth
1958-1959	R Harvey	H Shillinglaw	R Milner	I Deany
1959-1960	R Furlong	C Adams	D Anderson	B Kann
1960-1961	R Furlong	R Harvey	W Heller	I Deany
1961-1962	J Potter	R Bitmead	G Harvey	D Provis
1962-1963	D Anderson	R Bitmead	P Huntington	G Trivett
1963-1964	D Anderson	R Bitmead	R Bruce	J Paterson
1964-1965	J Potter	R Milner	D Provis	D Provis
1965-1966	J Potter	R Bitmead	G Murray	J Paterson
1966-1967	J Potter	A Thomson	P Huntington	D Ashworth
1967-1968	J Potter	R Bitmead	P Huntington	C Fox
1968-1969	C Dart	A Thomson	N Buszard	D Ashworth

	1st	XI	2nd XI	
Year	Batting	Bowling	Batting	Bowling
1969-1970	R Goldin	A Thomson	J Harvey	C Fox
1970-1971	N Buszard	D Weir	G Measom	W Heller
1971-1972	G Harvey	A Thomson	G Measom	T McCann
1972-1973	P Measom	A Thomson	T McCann	T McCann
1973-1974	N Buszard	A Duff	P Ryan	E Illingworth
1974-1975	N Buszard	E Illingworth	S Wilding	A Duff
1975-1976	T Cullen	E Illingworth	G Watts	M Delves
1976-1977	G Watts	P Wallace	K Roberts	M Sutcliffe
1977-1978	L Joslin	L Joslin	L Hathaway	A Melbourne
1978-1979	G Watts	S Smith	D Trickey	M Muir
1979-1980	G Watts	S Smith	C Haralambopoulos	S Cook
1980-1981	K McLaine	S Cook	K Roberts	R Clarke
1981-1982	R Watts	T Considine	J Harvey	R Clarke
1982-1983	R Watts	S Smith	B Williams	S Cook
1983-1984	G Watts	S Cook	A Melbourne	A Peters
1984-1985	I Wheeler	L Watts	A Melbourne	A Melbourne
1985-1986	R Bailev	T Considine	R Polkinghorne	C Widdowson
1986-1987	G Watts	L Watts	P Newton	B Walder
1987-1988	G Watts	T Considine	R McKinlay	A Melbourne
1988-1989	R Watts	L Watts	A Begg	S O'Flynn
1989-1990	L Watts	C McKissack	B Jende	J Ferguson
1990-1991	I Wheeler	M Ridgway	A Begg	P Thompson
1991-1992	G Watts	M Ridgway	B Joyce	M Algie
1992-1993	G Watts	M Ridgway	T Rowe	A Muir
1993-1994	L Watts	D Hampton	T Smith	C McKissack
1994-1995	G Watts	D Hampton	A Mulcahy	S Harvev
1995-1996	B Joyce	A Melbourne	T Smith	A Muir
1996-1997	G Watts	A Muir	C Caldwell	S Siede
1997-1998	D Plumpton	L Childs	D Sampimon	J Travaglia
1998-1999	G Watts	J Renkin	A Mulcahy	G Larsen
1999-2000	G Watts	C Street	D Jakobi	D McNees
2000-2001	B Joyce	L Childs	B Waterman	D McNees
2001-2002	D Plumpton	C Street	B Waterman	D Motschall
2002-2003	B Joyce	C Street	F Tabain	J Fagg
2003-2004	D Plumpton	B Waterman	P Lazer	N Owen
2004-2005	L Mash	B Waterman	K Sloan	A Shanahan
	1st	XI	2nd	XI

	Batting	Bowling	Batting	Bowling
2005-2006	L Mash	J Fagg	M Hunter	R Wilson
2006-2007	P Dickson	J Fagg	G Kellar	N Hrovatin
2007-2008	P Dickson	J Fagg	M Hunter	N Hrovatin
2008-2009	P Dickson	G Maxwell	D Campbell	A McCormack
2009-2010	L Mash	B Waterman	J Court	D Kimberley
2010-2011	G Maxwell	B Waterman	G Kellar	D Campbell
2011-2012	L Mash	J Fagg	M Bright	F Stewart
2012-2013	L Mash	P Dickson	T Sheehan	K Nayager
2014-2015	M Frith	A Perrin	J Blyth	J White
2015-2016	P Dickson	A Perrin	M Bremner	N Fletcher
2016-2017	L Mash	T Lawford	N Korkolis	M Grace
2017-2018	P Dickson	E Alavi	N Korkolis	T Law
2018-2019	L Banthorpe	T Lawford	L Shivakumar	C Simondson
2019-2020	P Dickson	N Fletcher	L Shivakumar	B Clarke
2020-2021	Jack Rudd	Ejaaz Alavi	Samuel Jones	Callum Mcllveen
2021-2022	L Banthorpe	Ejaaz Alavi	Abhilash Sharma	Callum Mcllveen
2022-2023	L Banthorpe	Ejaaz Alavi	Abhilash Sharma	Callum Mcllveen

## **Honour Roll Doncaster Cricket Club**

	1st XI		2nd XI		
Year	Batting	Bowling	Batting	Bowling	
1974-75	J Ogilvie	R Smith	D Kellalea	S Williams	
1975-76	R Smith	W Matthewson	D Kellalea	W Matthewson	
1976-77	R Smith	J Harmer	C Sindrey	M Speed	
1977-78	G Hansen	R Parry	J Williamson	F De Vries	
1978-79	C Dart	M Woodhams	R McAuley	M Speed	
1979-80	C Dart	B Bell	D Warry	T Date	
1980-81	C Dart	D Petty	G McMurray	S Atkins	
1981-82	C Dart	M Woodhams	D Warry	S Woodman	
1982-83	C Jackson	M Woodhams	P Dotchin	D Rogers	
1983-84	C Jackson	M Woodhams	S Black	S Silberer	
1984-85	C Jackson	M Woodhams	B Gotch	D Rogers	
1985-86	N Kilpatrick	P Jurgenstein	G Granland	G McMurray	

1955-56 to 1973-74 No records available

## **Honorary Life Members**

Name	Name	Name	Name	Name
S Conning	R Wicks	L Wynne	D de Lacy	J Calleja
R Poynter	R Barr	M Archdeacon	N Dowell	R Young
T Banks	G Beacham	A Brimblecombe	B Tully	R Page
A Sloan	H Brewer	H Mercer	G Crouch	L Watts
J Barnes	F Chapman	M Harvey	D Kellalea	B Joyce
W Field	W Wallace	W Jacobs	C Thiele	J Harvey
T Kidney	C Hickey	T Kiernan	K Hockey	R Smith
W Bales	E Twentyman	W Vautin	B Wilson	J Potter
A Clapham	T Haslam	B Whittaker	G Harvey	A Thomson
H Crispin	W Park	L Mercer	S O'Brien	T Considine
W Gorman	W Gadd	RN Harvey	A Taggart	L Mash
A Leach	C Steel	R Thomson	G Murray	D Motschall
E Talmage	H Bussell	J Morris	P Hewitt	P Dickson
J Trinnick	C Cookson	P Nelson	G Matthews	B Waterman
A Miller	W Cant	L Russell	F Cahill	T Sheehan
C Smith	F Chapman	M Sayer	E Illingworth	G Woolard
J Hayes	A Dummett	R Cant	D Petty	I Woolard
J McKirdy	M Ellis	R Harvey	M Smith	G Cook
R Mitchell	A Lansdown	K Kearney	J Beitzel	
W Banks	H Lansdown	W Delves	A Woodford	
W Barr	A Liddicut	L Bliss	D Patrick	
F Brady	T Rowe	A de Lacy	A Melbourne	
S Guerrero	H Plant	H Noonan	R Watts	
T Power	H Scotney	L Tully	G Watts	
J Scott	H Spaven	R Wood	J Scholes	

## Hall of Fame & Club Legends

#### Honor Roll - Hall of Fame

#### 2013 Inductees

E.A. 'Ted' McDonald A.E. Liddicut M.R. Harvey
R. Harvey R.N. Harvey W.L. Jacobs
J. Potter E.P. Illingworth G.M. Watts
L.J. Watts B.A. Joyce G.J Murray

#### 2015 Inductees

M.W. Sievers H.J. Plant R.W. Furlong
A.L. Thomson R.W. Watts C.B.D. Street
W. Barr

#### 2017 Inductees

C. Kiernan D.J. Anderson D.P. Rumble D.S. Berry A.J. Melbourne K.J. Kearney

#### 2020 Inductees

W.H. Cannon A.J.W. Lansdown H.A.E. Shillinglaw
C.F. Adams M.W. Ridgway M.M. Smith

#### **Honor Roll – Club Legends**

#### **2013 Inductees**

A.E. Liddicut R. Harvey E.P. Illingworth

#### **2015 Inductees**

R.N. Harvey G.M. Watts

#### **2017 Inductees**

W.L. Jacobs J. Potter

#### 2020 Inductees

A.L. Thomson

## **Club History**

#### **Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club**

The Fitzroy Doncaster Cricket Club was formed in July 1986, when the Fitzroy Cricket Club Inc. and the Doncaster Cricket Club Inc. amalgamated.

The original Office Bearers of the merged Club were:

PRESIDENT Mr JA Magee

VICE PRESIDENTS Mr J Beitzel

Mr M Smith

HON. TREASURER Mr F Cahill

HON. ASST. TREASURER Mr N Craven

HON. SECRETARY Mr K Kearney

HON. ASST. SECRETARY Mr D Patrick

COMMITTEE Miss R Calder, Mr T Cooney<sub>1</sub>, Mr H Day, Mr D deLacy, Mr E

Hart, Mr S Jerrard, Mr G Murray, Mr E O'Flynn, Mr J Pearson,

Mr D Rogers 1

Replaced by Mr A Woodford during season

#### **Club Premierships**

1930-1931	1939-1940	1960-1961	1993-1994	2015-2016
1938-1939	1953-1954	1966-1967	2001-2002	2016-2017

#### **Club Championships**

1939-1940 1957-1958 1960-1961 1961-1962 2017-18